
 

Historic Preservation Commission  

 
Members: 
Dr. Stephen Gibson – Chairperson 
Ms. Suzanne Wright – Vice Chairperson 
Mr. Tim Hoffman – Secretary 
Mr. Larry Jackson 
Mr. Chris Myers 
Dr. Michael Garrett 
Lincoln Wilkins. Jr. PhD 
Councilwoman Laurie Marchini 
Staff Liaison: Kathy McKenney, Historic Planner/Preservation Coordinator 
 

  
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

Historic Preservation Commission 

Cumberland City Hall, Council Chambers 

 

DATE:    July 14, 2021 

TIME:     4:00 PM 

 

Public Notice:  

The Cumberland Historic Preservation Commission will meet in the City Hall Council Chambers, located 

at 57 North Liberty Street in Cumberland on Wednesday, July 14, 2021 at 4pm.  A copy of the agenda 

and the meeting packet can be viewed on the City of Cumberland's website under Agendas and Minutes at 

www.ci.cumberland.md.us. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Review of the June 9, 2021 Meeting Minutes 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS – CONSENT AGENDA 

2. 25 North Liberty Street  - COA21-000017 – Replacement of existing signs with new signs – 

Mirjhana Buck, applicant 

CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS  

3. 34 North Centre Street  - RCA21-000011 – Amended façade design resulting from unexpected 

conditions of the façade once the metal façade was removed – Drew Knippenberg, applicant 

4. 70 Baltimore Street – COA21-000016 – After the fact review of the installation of plywood over 

the existing wood decking for the purpose of stabilizing the surface – Melinda Kelleher, 

Executive Director, Downtown Development Commission, applicant. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

5. Staff/Chairperson Updates 



6. Administrative Approvals Report - HPC Staff did not review any requests for Certificates of 

Appropriateness or Requests for Change Amendments during the previous month.  

ADJOURNMENT  

 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact the Department of Community Development at  

(301) 759-6431 or (301) 759-6442. 

Applicants or their appointed representatives must be present at the meeting for a review to take place. Please 

remember to turn off or silence all electronic devices prior to entering the meeting. 



File Attachments for Item:

1. Review of the June 9, 2021 Meeting Minutes



 

MINUTES 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

June 9, 2021 

Virtual WebEx Meeting 

 

 The Cumberland Historic Preservation Commission held its regular meeting on 

Wednesday, June 9, 2021 at 4:00 p.m., via a virtual WebEx meeting.  Members 

present were Acting Chairperson Suzanne Wright, Mr. Chris Myers, Mr. Tim 

Hoffman, Dr. Lincoln Wilkins Jr., Mr. Larry Jackson, and Dr. Michael Garrett.  

 Others in attendance were Kathy McKenney, Historic Planner/Preservation 

Coordinator, Debbie Helmstetter, Code Technician, Ms. Antonia Zais, Historic 

Preservation Intern, Ms. Sandra Saville, 27 N Centre Street, Drew Knippenberg, 34 

N. Centre Street, Vicki Thomas, Western Maryland Sign Service, Inc. and 

Christopher Hendershot, 138 Baltimore Street, Ms. Elizabeth Anne Beyer and Mr. 

Beyer.  

  Acting Chairperson, Ms. Suzanne Wright, called the meeting to order.  She 

read the following statement into the record: “The Cumberland Historic 

Preservation Commission exists pursuant to Section 11 of the City of Cumberland 

Municipal Zoning Ordinance.  Members are appointed by the Mayor and City Council 

and shall possess a demonstrated special knowledge or professional or academic 

training in such fields as history, architecture, architectural history, planning, 

archeology, anthropology, curation, conservation, landscape architecture, historic 

preservation, urban design or related disciplines.  The Commission strives to enhance 

quality of life by safeguarding the historical and cultural heritage of Cumberland.  

Preservation is shown to strengthen the local economy, stabilize and improve 

property values, and foster civic beauty.  The Cumberland Historic Preservation 

Commission operates pursuant to State of Maryland 1977 Open Meetings Act and 

therefore no pending applications shall be discussed between or amongst 

Commissioners outside the public hearing to determine the disposition of the 

application. Please note that the meeting is recorded and that digital signatures are 

on file from the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and Secretary for utilization in 

project determinations.”  

 



2 
 

Ms. Wright introduced the Commission members and staff who were present.   

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Minutes for May 12, 2021 were approved as written.  Mr. Tim Hoffman 

made the motion to approve and Dr. Michael Garrett seconded the motion; 

all members were in favor, motion approved. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 There were no public comments.  

CONSENT AGENDA  

1. 308 Washington Street – COA 21-000014 – Ms. Elizabeth Anne Beyer 

requested to replace existing three-tab asphalt shingle roof with 

architectural shingles. 

2. 19 South George Street – COA 21-000012 – Applicant Ms. Vicki 

Thomas (Western Maryland Sign Services, Inc.) – requested to Change 

Copy on Existing Signs. 

 

 Mr. Tim Hoffman made the motion to approve the consent agenda and 
Mr. Larry Jackson seconded the motion, all member were in favor; motion 
approved. Vote 5-0 in favor 

 

CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS 

 
1. RCA21-000009 – 27 N. Centre Street - Applicant Sandra Saville is 

requesting a window replacement and mural project.  Ms. Saville is 

requesting for a change/amendment to replace the rear window using the 

same window unit as was recently approved for the front facade, but she 

is not changing the size of the existing window opening. The applicant has 

requested to paint a mural on this same rear wall adjacent to Butler Alley.  

Mr. Larry Jackson made the motion to approve the change for RCA21-

000009 at 27 N Centre Street pursuant to guidelines 23: Replacement 

Windows and Guidelines 51: Murals and Signs as Art.  Mr. Chris Myers 

seconded the motion, all members were in favor; motion approved.  Vote 5-

0 
  

2. COA21-000015 – 34 N. Centre Street – Applicant Mr. Drew Knippenberg 

was present for the review.  He provided an overview of the project and 



3 
 

explained that the project would be completed in phases with the first 

phase more exploratory to discover what the conditions would be with the 

removal of the metal façade covering.  The anticipation from the applicant 

was that there will be a brick façade revealed once the covering is 

removed. The first phase will also involve the removal of the historic neon 

sign in order to refurbish it with changing the copy on the sign using an 

LED equivalent to neon. Mr. Knippenberg referred to the product as neon 

rope. Ms. Wright suggested to the applicant that the Commission could 

consider restoring the sign but to present the plans for the sign lighting 

at a later time.  

A lengthy discussion took place regarding the specifications for the 

modern alternatives to neon and the need to know those specifications for 

that product.  

   

 Mr. Larry Jackson made a motion to approve the Certificate of 

Appropriateness as it was consistent with Guidelines 1,3,42,45,46,47,and 

49 with the caveat that the Historic Preservation Commission was not 

approving the lighting for the sign at this time however HPC staff can 

approve the lighting specifications when these are available.  Mr. Chris 

Myers seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved.   

3. RCA21-000010 – 138 Baltimore Street – Mr. Christopher Hendershot - 

Applicant is requesting for a change to COA 847, which was issued in 

September 2018 for the installation of signage.  The applicant is also 

requesting an extension to complete the work that was originally specified 

for signage at this location under the Certificate of Appropriateness.  The 

project involves repainting the metal siding on roof structures to match 

the building.  These are located in the more “modern” circa 1950s addition 

to the original McMullen Building.  The scope of work will also involve 

updating the signage on the side of the structure above the entrance on 

North George Street-replacing lettering and adding more gooseneck lights.  

The project will also involve cleaning the masonry surfaces of the entire 

structure, particularly on the surfaces adjacent to Church Alley since 

there has been graffiti on those surfaces over the years.  

There was a lengthy discussion about the proposed media blasting on the 

masonry.  

 



4 
 

A motion was made by Mr. Lincoln Wilkins who verified that he had studied 

the application and all related documentation related to the case and is 

familiar with the property and its location is case and he finds it to be 

contributing in relationship to COA21-000015 that he suggested to 

approve the application pursuant to guidelines 1: Preserve Significant 

Architectural Features, Guidelines 2: Repair Before Replace, guidelines 13: 

General Painting Approaches; Guidelines 46: Sign Placement; Guidelines 47: 

Sign Size, Guidelines 48: Sign Lighting; Guideline 49: New Sign Materials.  

Mr. Wilkins made his motion contingent on the owners presenting their 

methodology for cleaning the brick by staff.  Mr.  Tim Hoffman seconded 

the motion; all members are in favor: motion approved.  Vote 5-0  

 

4. COA21-000010 – 127 Baltimore Street – Larry Jackson, 

representative, also a voting member of the Historic Preservation 

Commission 

Mr. Jackson provided an overview of the project and its intended use as 

a performance space.  He clarified that the submitted drawing was 

incorrect in that there is no plan to install a glass door within the front 

façade. 

The project involves the installation of a marquee with lighting, a banner, 

and a posterboard. 

Mr. Jackson clarified that the banner – measuring 4’x12’ - would be made 

of a canvas mesh material and the marquee would measure approximately 

4’ x 4’ and feature theatre lighting. The marquee would be constructed 

of wood and feature black wrapped metal with gold lettering. A 

showcase, possibly salvaged, is anticipated to measure 48” x 58”.  The 

marquee would attach to the brick using chains.  

Suzanne Wright recapped the proposal to ensure that all of the 

specifications of the overall project components were confirmed for the 

record.  Mr. Jackson confirmed each one for the record.  

Additional discussion took place about the more recent history of 

occupants of the space as well as the plans for the performance space. 



5 
 

Lincoln Wilkins made the motion to approve the application, as 

submitted, citing Guidelines 29,37,39,46,47,48, and 49 as pertinent to 

the determination.  Chris Myers seconded the motion and it was 

unanimously approved with Mr. Jackson confirming that he had recused 

himself from the vote.   

 

OTHER BUSINESS/STAFF UPDATES 

Ms. McKenney introduced Antonia Zais who is a Frostburg State 

University Geography major and Sustainability Studies minor who will 

be an intern in the Department of Community Development and 

learning more about historic preservation over the summer and will be 

working on developing the RFP for the Preservation Plan. 

 

Ms. McKenney reminded the members of the Commission about 

workshops that are planned by the National Alliance for Preservation 

Commissions.   

 

The members of the Commission discussed resuming meeting in person 

and determined that they wished to return to in person meetings 

beginning with the July 14th meeting. 

 

1.      ADMINISTATIVE APPROVAL 

 Ms. McKenney reported that she administratively approved COA21-

000009 for in-kind bay window roof replacement and painting at 105 

South Centre Street.  

  

ADJOURMENT 

Mr. Larry Jackson made the motion to adjourn and Mr. Tim Hoffman 

seconded the motion.  All members were in favor; motion approved. 

 

       Respectfully, 

        

       Mr. Tim Hoffman, Secretary 

       July 14, 2021 



File Attachments for Item:

2. 25 North Liberty Street  - COA21-000017 – Replacement of existing signs with new signs – Mirjhana 

Buck, applicant





















File Attachments for Item:

3. 34 North Centre Street  - RCA21-000011 – Amended façade design resulting from unexpected 

conditions of the façade once the metal façade was removed – Drew Knippenberg, applicant

















































File Attachments for Item:

4. 70 Baltimore Street – COA21-000016 – After the fact review of the installation of plywood over the 

existing wood decking for the purpose of stabilizing the surface – Melinda Kelleher, Executive Director, 

Downtown Development Commission, applicant.














	Top
	1.	June 9, 2021 Meeting Minutes
	HPC Minutes 06-9-21

	2.	25 North Liberty Street  - COA21-000017
	25NLibertyStCOA21-000017

	3.	34 North Centre Street  - RCA21-000011
	34NCentreStRCA21-000011

	4.	70 Baltimore Street – COA21-000016
	70BaltimoreStCOA21-000016

	5.	Staff/Chairperson Updates
	6.	Administrative Approvals Report
	Bottom

